
 

 
 
            

 
 

 
i 

JOINT DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE - 

CAMBRIDGE FRINGES 

 

 Membership 
 
Cambridge City Council: Cllrs Blencowe (Vice-Chair), Baigent, Bird, Price, 
Holt and Tunnacliffe, Alternates: Gawthrope, T. Moore and Smart 
 
Cambridgeshire County Council: Cllrs Ashwood, Hipkin, Kenney and 
Orgee,  Alternates: Harford, Loynes, Nethsingha and Williams 
 
South Cambridgeshire District Council: Cllrs Bard (Chair), Cuffley, 
de Lacey, Nightingale, Turner, Van de Weyer and Stonham, Alternates: 
Bygott, Cattermole, Corney, Wotherspoon, Lockwood and Davies 

  

Date: Wednesday, 18 January 2017 

Time: 10.30 am  

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2, The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, 
CB2 3QJ 

Contact:  Democratic Services Direct Dial:  01223 457013 
 

AGENDA 
Member Development Programme 
 
9.30 to 10.30 AM  -  Committee Room One 
 
Topic: Cambridge East - overall update – various City and SCDC officers. 

1    Apologies  
 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

2    Declarations of Interest  
 

 Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may 
have in an item shown on this agenda. If any member of the Committee is 
unsure whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular 
matter, they should seek advice from the Monitoring Officer before the 

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

meeting. 

3    Minutes (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2016 as a 
correct record.  

 
All Committee Members may vote on this item 

4   S/2647/16/RM - Local Centre phase, Trumpington Meadows 
development, Hauxton Road (Pages 11 - 60) 

 
All Committee members are welcome to attend the pre-application briefing 

5    Pre-application Member Briefing - Cowley Road, Cambridge, CB2 9LD  
 

 Developer briefing update on the pedestrian cycle way required to be 
delivered under applications S/3102/15/FL (SCDC) and 15/2317/FUL (City 
Council) and the related S106 agreement associated with the opening of 
the new Cambridge North train station. 



 
iii 

 
Quorum for This Item/Application:  
The quorum for the Committee comprises 3 members of Cambridge City Council, 3 
members of South Cambridgeshire District Council and 2 members of 
Cambridgeshire County Council. 
 
Speaking at the Committee by Other Members of the Councils 
A member of any of the councils who is not a member of the committee or a member 
of a parish council (in respect of applications relating to sites in their own parish) 
may speak at a meeting of the committee at the request or with the permission of 
that committee or of its Chair made or obtained before the meeting. Such request or 
permission shall specify the matters in respect of which the member shall be 
permitted to speak. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

 

Location 
 
 
 
 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square (CB2 
3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible via Peas 
Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, Committee 2 and 
the Council Chamber) are on the first floor, and are accessible 
via lifts or stairs.  
 

 

 

 

Public 
Participation 

Some meetings may have parts, which will be closed to the 
public, but the reasons for excluding the press and public will be 
given.  
 
Members of the public who want to speak about an application 
on the agenda for this meeting may do so, if they have 
submitted a written representation within the consultation period 
relating to the application and notified the Committee Manager 
that they wish to speak by 12.00 noon on the day before the 
meeting. 
 
Public speakers will not be allowed to circulate any additional 
written information to their speaking notes or any other drawings 
or other visual material in support of their case that has not been 
verified by officers and that is not already on public file.   
 

 



 
iv 

For further information on speaking at committee please contact 
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
Further information about speaking at a City Council meeting 
can be found at; 
 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-committee-meetings  
 
Cambridge City Council would value your assistance in 
improving the public speaking process of committee meetings. If 
you have any feedback please contact Democratic Services on 
01223 457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

Representati
ons on  
Planning 
Applications 

Public representations on a planning application should be 
made in writing (by e-mail or letter, in both cases stating your full 
postal address), within the deadline set for comments on that 
application. You are therefore strongly urged to submit your 
representations within this deadline. 
 
The submission of late information after the officer's report has 
been published is to be avoided. 
 
A written representation submitted to the Environment 
Department by a member of the public after publication of the 
officer's report will only be considered if it is from someone who 
has already made written representations in time for inclusion 
within the officer's report.  Any public representation received by 
the Department after 12 noon two business days before the 
relevant Committee meeting (e.g by 12.00 noon on Monday 
before a Wednesday meeting; by 12.00 noon on Tuesday before 
a Thursday meeting) will not be considered. 
 
The same deadline will also apply to the receipt by the 
Department of additional information submitted by an applicant 
or an agent in connection with the relevant item on the 
Committee agenda (including letters, e-mails, reports, drawings 
and all other visual material), unless specifically requested by 
planning officers to help decision-making. 
 

 

Filming, 
recording 
and 
photography 

The Council is committed to being open and transparent in the 
way it conducts its decision making. The public may record (e.g. 
film, audio, tweet, blog) meetings which are open to the public.  
 
 

 



 
v 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee Room 1, Committee 
Room 2 and the Council Chamber.  
 
Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first floor. 
 
Meeting papers are available in large print and other formats on 
request prior to the meeting. 
 
For further assistance please contact Democratic Services on 
01223 457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a committee report 
please contact the officer listed at the end of relevant report or 
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and the 
democratic process is available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/  
 

 

Mod.Gov 
App 

You can get committee agenda and reports for your tablet by 
using the mod.gov app 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes JDC/1
 Wednesday, 14 December 2016 

 

 
 
 

1 

JOINT DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE - CAMBRIDGE FRINGES  
 14 December 2016 
 10.30  - 11.15 am 
 
Present:  Councillors Bard (Chair), Blencowe (Vice-Chair), Baigent, Bird, 
Gawthrope, Holt, Tunnacliffe, Ashwood, Harford, Orgee, Cuffley, de Lacey, 
Nightingale and Van de Weyer.  
 
Officers Present: 
New Neighbourhoods Development Manager: Sharon Brown 
Planning Team Leader: Paul Mumford 
Senior Planning Officer: Katie Christodulides 
Senior Planning Officer, Andrew Winter 
Legal Advisor: Richard Pitt 
Democratic Services Officer: Daniel Snowdon 
 
 
Developer Representatives: 
Bidwells: Mr Nugent 
 
 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 

 

16/48/JDCC Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Hipkin, Kenney, Price and Turner. 
Councillors Gawthrope and Harford attended as alternates. 

16/49/JDCC Declarations of Interest 
 

Item number Councillor  Interest 

51 Ashwood Personal: Member of 
Trumpington 
Residents Association 

16/50/JDCC Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2016 were agreed and 
signed as a correct record subject to the addition of Councillor Turner who 
attended the meeting and Councillor Nightingale who gave his apologies. 

Public Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes                                      JDC/2                                   Wednesday, 14 December 2016 

 

 
 
 

2 

16/51/JDCC S/2176/16/RM and 16/1488/REM - Trumpington Meadows, 
Riverside Phase 9 
 
The Committee received applications for 122 residential dwellings, 80 units of 
which were located within South Cambridgeshire and 42 within Cambridge 
City.  The application included associated infrastructure, surface car parking, 
landscaping, amenity and public open space, pursuant to outline planning 
approvals S/0054/08/O and 08/0048/OUT. 
 
The Committee noted the amendments detailed in the amendment sheet.  
 
Mr Nugent (Applicants Agent) addressed the Committee in support of the 
application.   
 
The Committee made the following comments in response to the report.  
 

i. Expressed concern that a major application had been presented without 
plans or illustrations of the proposed development included in the officer 
report.     

ii. Noted that the proposed development appeared to represent a solid 
barrier to the country park and questioned the level of impact on existing 
residents’ amenity.   

iii. Clarified the car parking availability for the development.     
iv. Questioned whether the car parking spaces were sufficiently large 

enough to accommodate modern vehicles and the trend for large Sports 
Utility Vehicles (SUVs).   

v. Asked whether there was sufficient space within the cycle parking 
scheme for cargo cycles.   

vi. Welcomed the level of affordable housing that would be provided within 
the development.  

vii. Questioned the provision of affordable 3 and 4 bed properties within the 
development.   

viii. Drew attention to the impact of un-adopted roads on residents of 
affordable housing.     

ix. Noted the interaction of the proposed development with the wider site 
and commended the scheme for the level of affordable housing provided.  

x. Expressed concern regarding the PROW building and questioned 
whether it was envisaged within the design process to construct a 
predominantly different building.   

xi. Questioned how the Design Code remained up to date with changing 
design standards.   

Page 8



Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes                                      JDC/3                                   Wednesday, 14 December 2016 

 

 
 
 

3 

xii. Clarified why the development was named Riverside and its proximity to 
the river.     

xiii. Expressed concern regarding the context of the development with regard 
to the view of the development from the river.    

xiv. Highlighted the issues of car parking and requested that more 
imaginative solutions be developed to manage the issue.     

xv. Noted and welcomed the response of the Cambridgeshire Quality Panel 
and questioned whether the Quality Panel had the opportunity to provide 
further comments following the comments of officers.   

xvi. Clarified the wording of paragraph 5.3 of the report.   
xvii. Noted that the concern of the Refuse Team contained in paragraph 6.4 

of the report did not appear to have been addressed along with the 
concerns raised in paragraph 6.12 by the Drainage Officer.   

 
In response to Members’ questions Officers said the following: 
 

i. The site consisted of a combination of 2 and 4 storey blocks combined 
with open spaces such as Pipers Green that ran through the centre of the 
site.  The curved nature of site would also soften the visual impact of the 
buildings. 

ii. Specific car parking was allocated to the proposed Riverside development 
and visitor parking was provided by the Trumpington Meadows site as a 
whole. 

iii. The size of car parking spaces were determined by an assessment of 
average car size. 

iv. The cycle parking had been developed in accordance with the design 
code and that a mixture of parking was available including garages, cycle 
stores and Sheffield Hoops with 1m clearance between the hoops. 

v. Phases 7 and 8 included larger affordable properties and that the 
Riverside development was designed to provide smaller affordable 
accommodation units and taking into account that this was a higher 
density part of the overall development. .  

vi. Un-adopted roads would be managed by the same company that currently 
managed the wider Trumpington Meadows site.  The affordable housing 
provider, BPHA , had been consulted on the proposals at pre-application 
stage and had not raised concerns regarding the impact of 
service/maintenance costs on the affordability of the units where roads 
were unadopted.  

vii. The PROW building had developed through numerous iterations and had 
been challenging to incorporate within the scheme.  The design was 
intended to follow the ridge line across the country park.    

Page 9



Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes                                      JDC/4                                   Wednesday, 14 December 2016 

 

 
 
 

4 

viii. Standards had not changed significantly since when the Design Code was 
written.   

ix. The Riverside name had arisen from the Design Code name for the 
character zone and confirmed that the site would not be marketed as 
Riverside. 

x. As is standard practice, The Quality Panel had not had the opportunity to 
provide further comment on this Reserved Matters application but the 
wider issue would be discussed at a meeting of the Quality Charter 
Steering Group. 

xi. Paragraph 5.3 was standard wording that appeared in reports regarding 
the material weight that could be attributed to emerging policies within 
negotiations. 

xii. The Refuse Team and the Drainage officer had confirmed that they were 
satisfied with the proposals. 

 
The Committee: 
 
Resolved unanimously to approve the application in accordance with the 
officer recommendation and subject to the conditions set out in the officer 
report. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 11.15 am 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 10



  1 

 

JOINT DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE (CAMBRIDGE FRINGE SITES) 
 
Report by:  Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development 
 
Date:   18th January 2017 

Application No. S/2647/16/RM (SCDC)                   Agenda Item  
 

Date Received 6 October 2016                               Officer   Katie Christodoulides                          
                                                                                         

Target Date 5 January 2017 extended to 25 January 2017 
 

Parish Haslingfield 
 

Site Local Centre Phase Trumpington Meadows Development Site 
Hauxton Road Cambridge Cambridgeshire 
 

Proposal Reserved Matters for Local Centre including 40 new dwellings with 
associated internal roads, car and cycle parking, landscaping and 
open space and 450 square metres of A1, A2, A3 or D1 use 
pursuant to outline planning approval S/0054/08/O 
 

Applicant 
 

Barratt Homes Eastern Counties 

Application Type  Major                                                                      Departure: No 
 

The above application has been reported to the Planning Committee for determination by 
Members in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation for the Joint Development 
Control Committee for the Cambridge Fringes. 
 
Contents  
 

 Page 

Site Description/Area Context 2 

The Proposal  3 

Amended Plans and Additional Information 3 

Site History 4 

Publicity 6 

Policy  6 

Internal and External Consultations 7 

Neighbour Representations 10 

Assessment 10 

1. Principle of the development 11 

2. Relationship of Proposals to local centre strategy approved  
    under outline condition 48 

12 

         3. Affordable housing, housing mix and density 12 

         4. Compliance with parameter plans and Trumpington Meadows 
             design code 

13 

         5. Retail Units 16 

         6. Drainage 18 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



  2 

 

 

 

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT 
 

1.1 Trumpington Meadows lies on the south west edge of the City to the west of Hauxton 
Road, and forms part of the area allocated for predominantly residential development 
within Cambridge Local Plan 2006 Policy 9/5 (Southern Fringe) and within the 
Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan 2008. The Proposed Submission 
Cambridge Local Plan 2014 allocates the site for housing within proposals site R42b.  
 

         7.  Public Art 18 

         8.  Renewable energy and sustainability     18 

         9.  Disabled access 19 

        10.  Residential amenity     19 

        11.  Refuse arrangements     20 

        12.  Highway Issues     20 

        13.  Car and cycle parking     20 

        14.  Construction Management Plan (CMP)     22 

        15.  External lighting     22 

        16.  Ecology     22 

        17.   Archaeology     22 

        18.  Planning Obligation Strategy     22 

Conclusion  22 

Recommendation      22 

 
     APPENDICES 
 

Ref Title Page 
1 APPENDIX 1 – Plan of Trumpington Meadows Phases 30 

2 
APPENDIX 2 - Quality Panel minutes dated 11th April 2016 

31 

3 
APPENDIX 4- Visuals of the proposed scheme 

35 

4 
APPENDIX 3- Design code compliance statement 

39 

 
 

SUMMARY The application accords with the Development Plan for the 
following reasons: 
1) This scheme complies with the general principles of the 
outline parameter plans, local centre strategy outline condition 
48 submission dated 18th June 2014 and the site wide design 
code. 
2) The scheme provides a strong sense of place and a legible 
layout creating a high quality local centre for Trumpington 
Meadows.  
3) The development achieves an appropriate level of car 
parking.  
4) The scheme delivers 40% affordable housing in accordance 
with policy. 

RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 

Page 12



  3 

 

1.2 In October 2009 outline planning permissions were granted by Cambridge City and 
South Cambridgeshire District Council’s for 1200 dwellings, a country park, primary 
school, community facilities, informal and formal play space and associated 
infrastructure at Trumpington Meadows. Since then a number of reserved matters 
applications have been approved and the development is well advanced. 

 

1.3 The Local Centre site comprises of a rectangular shaped plot adjacent to 
Trumpington Primary School, to the north of the site lies Phase 8, with Phase 9 lying 
to the west.  The site is situated in the Urban Quarter with the spine road running 
through it. The site falls fully within the South Cambridgeshire District Council 
boundary.  

 

2.0 THE PROPOSAL 

 

2.1 This reserved matters application needs to be considered in the context of the local 
centre strategy outline condition submission that was approved by the Joint 
Development Control Committee (JDCC )  on 18th June 2014. Reserved matters 
permission is sought for the erection of 40 new dwellings in two blocks with 
associated internal roads, car and cycle parking, landscaping and public open space, 
and 450 square metres of A1 (Shops), A2 (Financial and Professional Services), A3 
(Food and Drink) or D1 (Non-residential Institutions) use (anchor store 315m², 
second unit of 65m² and third unit of 70m²) in the southern block pursuant to outline 
planning approval S/0054/08/O. Reserved matters approval is sought for access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale. The development provides 24 market 
dwellings and 16 affordable dwellings. This equates to 40% affordable housing for 
the Local Centre Phase.   

 

2.2 For over 12 months officers have engaged in pre-application meetings with the 
developer team on the Local Centre Phase. The scheme was considered by the 
Cambridgeshire Quality Panel and supported. Comprehensive comments on the 
emerging scheme were provided and the applicant and their design team have 
largely amended the proposals to respond to the issues and suggestions made by 
officers. 
 

2.3  The application is accompanied by the following supporting information: 
 

1. Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement  
2. Planning Statement 
3. Marketing Statement  
4. Statement of Community Engagement 
5. Drainage Strategy Statement 
 

Amended Plans and Additional Information 

 

2.4 The following amended plans and additional information have been received 
29/11/2016 following officer and consultee comments: 

 

 Amendments to the design comprising external wall thickness, floor 
height, all stair and corridors internal, Juliette balconies on level one north 
block central to opening, gas risers in facades, traditional construction to 
blocks, internal staircase design revised, layout revised.  

Page 13



  4 

 

 Updated Design & Access Statement including Compliance Statement  

 Updated Planning Drawings 

 Updated Landscape Drawings 

 Updated Drainage Plan 

 Updated Technical Notes on parking, highways, lighting and underground 
recycling facilities 

 
3.0 SITE HISTORY 
 

Reference Description 
 

Outcome 

S/2712/16/DC Discharge of Conditions 14 (Code for 
Sustainable Homes), 21 (Renewable 
Energy), 28 (Contamination), 30 
(Construction Management Plan), 42 
(Archaeology)  and 45 (Fire Hydrants) of 
outline planning consent S/0054/08/O for 
the Local Centre 

Approved 

S/2710/13/DC Trumpington Meadows Local Centre 
Strategy, Outline Condition 48 
(S/0054/08/O) 

Approved  

08/0048/OUT Demolition of existing buildings and 
structures, redevelopment for approximately 
600 dwellings, two new accesses onto 
Hauxton Road, recreation/leisure uses 
including change of use from agriculture to 
public open space, with associated parking, 
infrastructure and earthworks. 
 

Approved 
S106 

S/0054/08/O 
(SCDC) 

Demolition of existing buildings and 
structures, redevelopment for approximately 
600 dwellings. And for a Primary School, 
Recreation/Leisure Uses including change 
of use from agriculture to public open 
space, community and other local facilities 
with associated parking, infrastructure and 
earthworks. 
 

Approved 
S106 

S/0685/10/RM 
(SCDC)  
 

Phase 1 Infrastructure provision (Phase 1 
Primary Street (spine road) and John Lewis 
Partnership Access) 
 

Approved 

10/0501/REM 
(City)  
 

Phase 1 Infrastructure provision (Phase 1 
primary street and John Lewis Partnership 
access).  
 

Approved 

S/1113/10 
(SCDC)  
 

Formation of a Country Park  
 

Approved 

S/00506/11/CC Two form entry primary school incorporating Approved 

Page 14



  5 

 

(County)  
 

pre-school and community facilities with 
associated car and cycle parking, multi-use 
games area, hard surface play areas, 
playing fields.  
 

11/0073/REM 
(City) 

Submission of reserved matters (access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) 
for 163 dwellings to north east part (Phase 
1) of Trumpington Meadows pursuant to 
outline application 08/0048/OUT. 
 

Approved 

11/0075/REM 
(City) 

Submission of reserved matters (access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) 
for 161 dwellings to north east part (Phase 
1) of Trumpington Meadows pursuant to 
outline application 08/0048/OUT. 
 

Approved 

S/0160/11 
(SCDC) 

Reserved matters (access,  
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) 
for 29 dwellings to north east (Part Phase 
one, 189 dwellings) of Trumpington 
Meadows pursuant to outline applications 
08/0048/OUT & S/0054/08/O. 
 

Approved 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14/0624/REM 
(City) 

Reserved Matters for 86 new dwellings with 
associated internal roads, car parking, 
landscaping, amenity and public open 
space. The reserved matters include use, 
amount, layout, scale, landscaping and 

appearance.  

Approved 

S/2998/14/RM & 
14/2109/REM 

Reserved matters for phase 8 providing 36 
new dwellings with associated internal 
roads, car parking, landscaping, amenity 
and public open space. (25 dwellings fall 
within South Cambridge District Council and 
11 dwellings fall within Cambridge City 
Council). 

Approved 

S/2176/16/RM & 
16/1488/REM 
 
 
 

Reserved Matters for Riverside Phase 
including 122 residential dwellings with 
associated internal infrastructure, car 
parking, landscaping, amenity and public 
open space pursuant to outline planning 
approval S/0054/08/O 
 

Approved 

S/2646/16/RM & 
14/2109/REM 

Reserved matters for phases 10&11 
providing 392 new dwellings with associated 
internal roads, car parking, landscaping, 
amenity and public open space. 

Pending 
Decision 

 

 

Page 15



  6 

 

4.0 PUBLICITY   
 

4.1 Advertisement:      Yes  
 Adjoining Owners:      Yes  
 Site Notice Displayed:      Yes  

 

5.0 POLICY 
 

5.1 Relevant Development Plan policies: 
 

PLAN POLICY NUMBER 

Cambridge Southern Fringe  
Area Action Plan 2008 

CSF/1  CSF/2  CSF/3  CSF/6  CSF/7 
CSF/11  CSF/12  CSF/13  CSF/16  
CSF/17  CSF/19  CSF/21  CSF/22  

LDF Core Strategy Development  
Plan Document  January 2007 

ST/2  ST/10 

LDF Development Control Policies 
Development Plan Document  July 
2007 

DP/1 DP/2 DP/3 
HG/1 HG/2 HG/3 
NE/6 NE/11 NE/14 
SF/6  SF/10 
TR/2  TR/4 

 

5.2 Relevant Central Government Guidance, Supplementary Planning Documents and 
Material Considerations 

 

Central Government 
Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  March 
2012 
National Planning Policy Framework – Planning 
Practice Guidance March 2014 
 

Supplementary 
Planning Guidance 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
(RECAP): Waste Management Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document (February 2012) 
 
LDF District Design Guide: High Quality and 
Sustainable Development in South Cambridgeshire 
(March 2010) 
Landscape in New Developments SPD (March 2010) 
LDF Affordable Housing SPD (March 2010) 
 
Public Art (January 2009) 

Material 
Considerations 

Area Guidelines  
Trumpington Meadows Design Code (2010) 

 
5.3  Status of Proposed Submission – South Cambridgeshire Local Plan 
 

Planning applications should be determined in accordance with policies in the 
adopted Development Plan and advice set out in the NPPF. However, after 
consideration of adopted plans and the NPPF, policies in emerging plans can also be 
given some weight when determining applications. For South Cambridgeshire, 

Page 16



  7 

 

therefore, the emerging revised Local Plans as published for consultation in July 
2013 can be taken into account, especially those policies where there are no or 
limited objections to it. However it is likely, in the vast majority of instances, that the 
adopted development plan and the NPPF will have considerably more weight than 
emerging policies in the revised Local Plan. 
 

5.4  For the application considered in this report, the following policies in the emerging 
plan that carry some weight are: 
 
South Cambridgeshire Plan  
 
CC/6 Construction Methods 
CC/8 Sustainable Drainage Systems 
CC/9 Managing Flood Risk 
HQ/1 Design Principles 
HQ/2 Public Art and New Development 
H/9 Affordable Housing 
SC/10 Lighting proposals 
SC/11 Noise Pollution 
SC/12 Contaminated Land 
 

6.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 

Cambridgeshire County Council (Highways Development Management)   
 

Comments on application as submitted 
 

6.1  No objections to the proposals subject to a suitable adoptable layout for the Highway 
being agreed.  Requested confirmation as to who will own and maintain the recycling 
facility as if this will be private, the structure cannot lie beneath the public highway. 
Commuted sums will be required for trees, non-standard materials and other features 
that would result in increased maintenance liabilities for the Highway Authority.  

 
Comments on amended application 
 

6.2 No objections. The issues of way marking and limits of adoption of the public 
highway are satisfactory. 

             
Cambridgeshire County Council (Flood and Water Team)  
 
Comments on application as submitted 

 
6.3 No objections to the principle of the Drainage Strategy Statement for the Local 

Centre. However, there is no indication of the proposed impermeable area following 
development. As part of the strategic drainage system, impermeable areas per 
development parcel were agreed and we need to ensure that the allowable area is 
not exceeded for each reserved matters application.   

 
Comments on amended application 

 
6.4 The updated Detailed Drainage Strategy (ref: 0658-SK142 Rev D dated November 

Page 17



  8 

 

2016) confirms the proposed impermeable area is within the approved limit and is 
acceptable.  
 
Refuse Team  
 

6.5 No comments received. 
 

Anglian Water  
 
6.6 No comments received. 

 

Wildlife Trust  
 
6.7 No comments received. 

 

Access Officer 
 
6.8  No comments received. 

 

Cambridge County Council Archaeology 
 
6.9 The submitted Written Scheme of Investigation for Archaeological Mitigation dated 

February 2010 is acceptable subject to a programme of post excavation analysis 
leading to the publication of the excavation as detailed in the letter dated 18th 
October 2012 from Alison Dickens Cambridge Archaeological Unit. 

 
 Police Architectural Liaison Officer  

 
6.10  No further comments to make.  
 

Sustainability Officer 
 
6.11 The application is considered to present a credible strategy for achieving the energy 

and carbon requirements of local policy. To ensure the development meets the 
requirements of Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4, the applicant will need to 
provide a Building Regulations compliant baseline showing the TER (Target 
Emissions Rate) of the various dwellings within the development, along with BER 
(Building Emissions Rate) proving the appropriate percentage reduction in carbon 
emissions has been achieved (25% on Part L 2010). The applicant is committed to 
achieving Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4, ensuring a 25% reduction in carbon 
emissions compared to Building Regulations Part L 2010, and BREEAM ‘Very Good’ 
for retail buildings, the scheme will achieve all the requirements of the energy and 
carbon policies.  

 
Drainage Officer  

 
6.12 No further comments to make as all the details have been included in the application. 

Recommends a condition requiring no building to be occupied until the surface of 
water drainage scheme for the site has been completed in accordance with the 
submitted details. 
 

Page 18



  9 

 

 Affordable Housing Officer 
 

6.13 All developments that increase the net number of dwellings on site by 3 or more need 
to provide 40% affordable housing suitable to address local housing needs. The 
tenure mix for affordable housing generally in South Cambridgeshire District is 70% 
social rented and 30% intermediate housing. However, on the sites which form urban 
extensions to Cambridge, the starting point is 75% Affordable Rent and 25% 
Intermediate. It would be preferable in this case for all the affordable housing to be of 
a single tenure which in this case is social rented. As this phase is part of a larger 
overall development, it would be preferable to accommodate the shared ownership 
requirement within the wider site wide S106 and remaining phases.  
 
National Grid  
 

6.14 No comments received.  
 

Landscape Officer  
 
Comments on application as submitted 
 

6.15  Requests additional information in relation to the extent of adoptable boundaries 
being identified, the adoptable footpath being continuous, removal of the planting bed 
in the adoptable path, details of street lighting, kerbs next to trees to protect from car 
damage, the tree in the centre of the main access to the building being removed and 
further details required for landscaping and 5 year maintenance.  

 
Comments on amended application 

 
6.16 The amended plans have addressed the previous comments and are acceptable, 

and requests conditions in regard to final details hard landscaping, the car park 
pergolas (non-masonry systems) and boundary details.  

 
Urban Design Officer   
 
Comments on application as submitted 

 
6.17 Additional information is required in regard to proposed lighting columns and 

impeding on parking, waste refuse collection routes to the north and south block 
being unusable and parking courts being designed with a central black top access to 
align with the adopted turning head.  

 
Comments on amended application 

 
6.18 The amended drawings are acceptable subject to the imposition of conditions. The 

proposed layout is appropriate and in accordance with the Trumpington Meadows 
development framework and design code. The transitional point between the 
community street and the main square has been improved with the removal of 
proposed landscaping. Requests that conditions restricting the delivery times to 
particular times of the day for the retail units are imposed to avoid conflict with the 
residential units above. The proposals demonstrate a clear approach to the 
private/public threshold. The amendments to the elevations are supported subject to 

Page 19



  10 

 

conditions in regard to brick recesses and detailing. Requests conditions in regard to 
a sample panel for the brick work, non masonry systems, windows and doors, hard 
landscaping, boundary treatments and balconies.  

 
Acting Environmental Health Manager 

 
6.19 Raises no concerns and the submitted Construction Management Plan is sufficient.  

Due to the mix of commercial and residential uses in this location, conditions are 
required to control hours of use of the units, hours of deliveries, a noise assessment 
in regard to any plant proposed, details of extraction and odour, and management of 
the commercial uses.  
 
Cambridge Fire and Rescue Service  
 

6.20 The provision of fire hydrants has been agreed and the planning condition can be 
discharged.   

 
 Scientific Contaminated Land Officer 
 

6.21 Parts a, b, c and d of Condition 28 (contaminated land) of the outline permission 

in regard to remediation have been discharged. Parts e and f relate to post start 

on the site, stages of the development which have been agreed and remain 

applicable to the Outline condition. 

7.0 REPRESENTATIONS 
  
7.1 No comments received.  
 

 Haslingfield Parish Council  
 
7.2  No recommendation.  
 
 Grantchester Parish Council 
 
7.3  No comments on original scheme received. No objections to the amended plans.  
 
 Trumpington Residents Association  
 

7.4 No comments received. 
 

8.0 ASSESSMENT 
 
8.1 The main material planning considerations in this instance are: 
 

1. Principle of development 
2. Relationship of proposals to local centre strategy approved under outline 

condition 48 
3. Affordable housing, housing mix and density 
4. Compliance with parameter plans and Trumpington Meadows design code 

Context of site, design and external spaces 

Page 20



  11 

 

5. Retail Units 
6. Drainage 
7. Public Art 
8. Renewable energy and sustainability 
9. Disabled access 
10. Residential amenity 
11. Refuse arrangements 
12. Highway Issues 
13. Car and cycle parking 
14. Construction Management Plan (CMP) 
15. Noise 
16. External lighting 
17. Ecology 
18. Archaeology 
19. Planning Obligation Strategy 

 

1. Principle of Development 
 

8.2 This is a residential reserved matters scheme for 40 dwellings and 450m² of A1 
(Shops), A2 (Financial and Professional Services), A3 (Food and Drink) or D1 (Non-
residential Institutions) use pursuant to the outline permission.  The combined master 
plan which was approved as part of the outline application fixes the key principles for 
the development.   
 

8.3 A number of strategic conditions attached to the outline permission have been    
discharged by the Joint Development Control Committee (JDCC), which includes the 
Design Code, Phasing, Site Wide Drainage Strategy, Strategy for Youth Facilities 
and Children’s Play and Public Art Strategy.  Condition 48 of the Outline application 
was also discharged by the JDCC under application S/2710/13/DC detailing the 
Local Centre strategy. 

 
8.4 The applicant seeks the discharge of the following outline conditions that apply to the 

Local Centre Phase: 

4 – Reserved matters detail 
5 – Parking  

           10– Design Code Compliance Statement 
13 – Private and affordable housing 
14- Minimum Level 4 Code for Sustainable Homes  
15 – Life Time Homes 
17 – Drainage 
18 - Drainage 
19 - Main and foul water drainage 
21- Renewable Energy 
24 - Landscaping within the built-up area 
30- Construction management plan  
32 -Waste recycling facilities 
35- Building Levels 
36 - Car parking for people with disabilities 
37 - Overall car parking numbers 
38 - Cycle ways and footpaths 

Page 21



  12 

 

8.5 The details of these pre-commencement conditions have been incorporated into the 
reserved matters submission as appropriate. Any stand-alone conditions from the 
outline consent will be dealt with in a separate discharge application. 

The principle of development is considered acceptable given the scheme’s context 
as part of a wider approved residential urban extension development.  

2. Relationship of proposals to local centre strategy approved under 
outline condition 48 
 

8.6 The approved local centre strategy discharged under condition 48 of the outline 
permission established the following principles for the local centre: 

 Vision: Creation of a viable and vital Local Centre, a primary public space and 
place that is attractive and pedestrian friendly.  

 Context: Provision of a key open space in the centre of the development and 
links to the development through the spine road and a green finger linking the 
open space and Country Park to the west. 

 The Units: Flexibility in the number, type and size of the Local Centre 
commercial units.  

 Transportation and Accessibility: The main square will provide parking in the 
shared space for visitors with the rear area providing parking for residential 
units. 

 Maintenance and Management: The ownership and maintenance 
responsibility for the square, hard and soft landscaping is an important 
component.  

 Waste Recycling Facility: Provision of an underground recycling facility. 

 Marketing Strategy: The marketing strategy is based on attracting a user to 
the anchor store and approaches during the design process. Once the anchor 
store tenant is known, tenants will be sought for the other units.  

 

3. Affordable housing, housing mix and density 

 

8.7 It is proposed that 16 of the 40 residential units are affordable, which equates to 40% 
of the housing mix. This achieves the minimum 40% requirement site wide.  All of the 

16 affordable units will be social rented. This does not meet the S106 agreed 
indicative affordable housing tenure split of 75:25 ratio. The approved Registered 
Provider (RP)  BPHA have confirmed that 100% social rented for all the affordable 
provision on the site is proposed as it would be easier to have one tenure in terms of 
management, and the proposed shared ownership sited above the retail units would 
be less attractive. In this instance, the proposed affordable housing tenure would be 
acceptable given the small number of residential units affected and given the 
concerns of the registered housing provider. Furthermore, the site wide affordable 
housing tenure split can be balanced on remaining phases, such as Phases 10 & 11, 
which have recently been submitted but are yet to be determined. Cumulatively, 40% 
of the total 1,190 dwellings at Trumpington Meadows would be affordable with 75% 
of the affordable being social rented, and 25% being shared ownership to comply 
with the S106 requirements.  

 

8.8  All the affordable units will be provided within the southern block. Condition 13 of the 
outline consent states that no more than 20 affordable apartments can be clustered 

Page 22



  13 

 

together (with no more than 12 accessed from a common stairwell or lift). 16 
affordable apartments would be provided with 10, and the following 6 apartments 
accessed from two stairwells. The proposal is considered to meet this condition 
requirement.   

 
8.9 In line with the design code, a mix of 50% housing and 50% apartments in the urban 

quarter is intended, with the design code stating that apartments will be located on 
corner plots or front principal spaces. The Local Centre is located at one of these 
principal spaces and comprises a mix of 1-bed and 2-bed apartments, as follows:  

  
Table 1: Local Centre Phase housing mix 

 

Apartment Affordable  Market Total 

1 bed          4 9            13 

2 bed         12 15            27 

Total         16 24            40 

 

8.10 The gross housing density at the Local Centre phase is 61 dwellings per hectare 
(dph). This reflects the approach set out in the approved design code (p.152), which 
seeks a gross density of between 60-65 (dph).   
 

8.11 Consequently, the proposal, as viewed collectively with surrounding phases, is 
considered to provide a satisfactory level of affordable housing and housing mix to 
meet the aims and objectives of Policy CSF/7 of the Cambridge Southern Fringe AAP 
and the outline planning consents. 

 

4. Compliance with parameter plans and Trumpington Meadows design code 
 

8.12 The key considerations are the appropriateness of the design, layout, scale, massing, 
and external appearance of the buildings in their setting. Compliance with the Outline 
scheme, Local Centre strategy discharged under condition 48 of the outline 
permission and the design code requirements is discussed below. 

 
8.13 Design and layout 

 
The evolution and justification of the layout of the scheme is well illustrated and 
summarized within the Design and Access Statement including the compliance 
statement (Appendix 3) along with the submitted plans and elevations. Under the 
Masterplan & Design Code, the design principles for the Local Centre Phase are for a 
primary building frontage, which helps create a distinctive quality and character, 
having a rich architectural detail. Together with the adjacent primary school which 
faces onto the square, the proposal defines the central public square and Local 
Centre with a tree lined avenue along the east-west vista providing a distinct social 
space. The proposed scheme is in line with the concept drawings submitted as part 
of the Local Centre strategy discharged under condition 48 of the outline permission 
by the southern block being commercial, residential car parking being to the rear of 
the blocks, with visitor car and cycle parking being within the public square.  
 
 
 

Page 23



  14 

 

Scale and Massing 

 
8.14 The outline parameter plans identify building heights for the Local Centre of up to four 

storeys (up to 14.5 metres) along the primary street and principal square, and up to 3 
storeys (up to 11 metres) beyond this. As per the design code, roof profiles should 
generally be constant along the street with variation and emphasis of the height on 
the street corners. Repetition of building heights along either side of the streets is 
important to local distinctiveness.  

 

8.15 Officers are supportive of the proposed scale and massing in which the two proposed 
blocks are mainly three storey’s in height, and four storey’s at the eastern corners. 
The building heights help to frame and define the public square, providing a good 
sense of enclosure.  

 
8.16 Overall, the scheme accords with the principles set out in the design code relating to 

height and massing. 
 

Elevations 

 
8.17 The overall approach to the design of the proposal is contemporary vernacular, 

with simple L shaped blocks which provide a clear distinction of the front and rear 
elevations.  

 
8.18 The design of the frontage of the northern block is characterized by being wholly 

residential with a quite uniform, vertical emphasis and rhythm with balconies 
recessed and slightly projecting. The frontage of the southern block is 
characterized by having retail units at the ground floor with residential units at the 
upper floors. The design of the southern block is simple in its appearance having 
a uniform appearance. Both blocks are higher at the eastern corners and allow a 
vista leading into the public square and views beyond to the country park. The 
proposed design of the two blocks is considered to be of a high quality and fits 
with the principle of the approved local centre strategy under condition 48 of the 
outline permission.  
 

  Materials 
 
8.19 The applicant has identified the general approach to materials within section 4 of 

the D&A Statement.  The primary brick colour for the Local Centre is a soft light 
pink. The northern block will be composed of a light pink brick with the southern 
block having light grey bricks at the base for the retail use, and soft light bricks at 
the top for the residential use. The proposed brick colour aims to provide a rich 
colour which emphasizes the importance and warmth of the local centre as a 
focal point.  A condition (1) is recommended to require sample panels of the 
bricks and details of the materials. 

 
  External Spaces 
 

8.20 The proposed Local Centre square provides a principal focal space, connecting with 
the green corridor of Piper Green leading to the Country Park. The square paving 
pattern follows the building grid. The square would provide an integration point for all 
key elements consisting of the Spine Road, commercial units, social spaces, parked 

Page 24



  15 

 

vehicles, trees, planting beds, recycling facilities and would provide a circulation 
space and zones for different activities. This would accord with the context principle 
agreed in the approved Local Centre strategy under condition 48 of the outline 
permission. 

8.21 The comments of the Landscape Officer have been addressed in the amended plans. 
The Landscape Officer advises conditions are added in regard to hard landscaping 
(Condition 5), non masonry systems for the northern block car park pergolas 
(Condition 2) and boundary treatment (Condition 7) and these are recommended at 
the end of this report.  

 
8.22 The proposed scheme does not require any form of Local Area of Play (LAP) in 

accordance with the approved site wide Youth and Play Strategy under condition 11 
of the outline consent. Notwithstanding this, the nearest LAP is situated within Pipers 
Green and is within easy walking distance of the scheme.   

 
8.23 Each dwelling will have sufficient private amenity space in the form of a balcony at 

first or second floor or a private terrace at ground floor level. 
 

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel Review  
 
8.24 Prior to the submission of the planning application, the proposed scheme was 

considered by the Cambridgeshire Quality Panel in April 2016. Positive responses 
were received and the submitted plans have incorporated the Panel’s comments. The 
Quality Panel report is contained at Appendix 2. The table below sets out the key 
issues raised through the Quality Panel review process and how the submitted 
application has addressed them, or if not, giving justification from the applicant as to 
why. 

 

Panel comment Addressed in application 

Explore the potential uses of the 
space by different groups, for 
example consider the provision of 
an urban gym, to the east of the 
square next to the school. 

The scheme does not include a specific 
area of children’s play in the form of a 
locally equipped area of play (LEAP) or 
neighbourhood equipped area for play 
(NEAP) as the only available space 
would be directly outside the front 
entrance of the school which would give 
rise to noise issues for the residents 
during anti-social hours.  

Explore alternatives for the 
parking and recycling centre. 

Rows of parking in the central square 
will be integrated with trees, hedges 
and planting. The location is also fixed 
in the design code.  
 
The waste recycling will be 
underground to minimise its visual 
impact.  

Consider the use of feature 
lighting to create a sense of 
place. 

Street lighting columns will be black 
powder coated as per the existing 
within other parts of the development. 
Lighting also needs to be to an 

Page 25



  16 

 

Panel comment Addressed in application 

adoptable standard for the Local 
Highway Authority.  

Overheating is a concern, as 
many new homes overheat and it 
is expensive to correct. 

Improved specification glazing will be 
employed to reduce the amount of solar 
gain and occupants will be able to 
install internal blinds to reduce 
overheating.  

There is an opportunity to raise 
some of the buildings to 4 floors.  

The design is predominantly three 
storey’s in height with the eastern 
corners of the two blocks being 
accented with double height bays, 
balconies and elevated balustrade 
profiles. The proposed height and 
design therefore creates enough sense 
of hierarchy and distinction when 
viewed against surrounding residential 
buildings. 

The architecture should remain 
calm and simple. 

The design and elevations are simple 
with contemporary vernacular.  

Consider paving and shared 
surface patterns and how this 
affect pedestrian and drivers 
behaviour. Is the grid the right 
size and scale?  

The central square paving pattern 
follows the building grid, allowing the 
successful integration of visual 
constraints such as the Spine Road, 
parked vehicles, pedestrian routes 
through tree planting and demarcation. 
The spine road will be defined by a 
flush channel kerb on each side which 
will offer enough change in surface 
level to provide the partially sighted 
concern to be cautious and comply with 
wayfinding.  

 
Summary 

 
8.25 The design and layout of the Local Centre Phase is considered to be consistent with 

the principles of the design code, Local Centre strategy approved under condition 48 
of the outline consent, and will successfully contribute to the character of the 
emerging character areas, comprising the urban quarter. As such the proposal is 
compliant with Policies DP/1 and DP/2 of the South Cambridgeshire LDF 2007 and 
Policy CSF/2 of the Cambridge Southern Fringe AAP 2008. 

 
5. Retail Units  

 
8.26 The approved Local Centre strategy discharged by members on 18th June 2014 

under (S/2710/13/DC) under condition 48 of the outline permission required 
marketing prior to the Reserved Matters submission. The marketing strategy focused 
on attracting a suitable convenience food operator for a large retail anchor unit. The 
marketing exercise indicated that a large convenience store would be difficult to 
deliver, but a number of smaller units would provide opportunity to fulfil the vision of 

Page 26



  17 

 

the approved Local Centre Strategy, encouraging and creating the necessary footfall, 
linked trips and activity for the Centre to be a community location.   

 
8.27 The proposed three commercial units would be sited within the southern block on the 

ground floor totaling 450m². The units would form a parade along the southern edge 
of the square facing north. The proposal includes for A1, A2, A3 and D1 uses to allow 
a range of different commercial and community uses to come forward. This accords 
with the Local Centre strategy that sought flexibility in the number, type and size of 
the Local Centre units to give confidence that the units will attract occupiers, 
commence occupation and remain occupied. The occupants of the units are not 
currently known and it is intended to market and secure a suitable convenience food 
operator for the anchor unit first. This would then encourage other complimentary 
operators for the smaller units to follow in line with the agreed strategy.  
 
Servicing  
 

8.28 Each of the commercial units has a rear door for staff and servicing. Units 2 and 3 
would be serviced from the community street with the anchor unit being serviced by a 
rear passage at the south edge of the site, with flexibility to service at the front from 
the layby. Condition 15 is recommended to require submission of a management 
plan which will fully detail how the servicing arrangements for each unit will operate.  
 

8.29 Condition (14) is recommended to restrict the amalgamation of the individual units, as 
a new configuration would have an impact on servicing, design and amenity which 
would require further consideration.  
 
Deliveries 
 

8.30 Condition 15 is recommended to require submission of a management plan for each 
commercial unit to include details of deliveries in order to minimise the impact on 
neighbouring properties. Condition 10 is recommended to restrict the hours of 
deliveries within the Local Centre to between 07:00 and 19:00 hours on Monday to 
Saturdays and between 09:00 and 17:00 on Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays.  
 
Noise and odour control measures 
 

8.31 In line with the Environmental Health Officer’s comments conditions 9,10,11,12 are 
recommended to protect the amenity of residents by minimizing noise, odours and 
disturbance from the commercial uses to the residential units sited at the first and 
second floor levels.  

 
8.32 To protect the residential properties from disturbance, condition 9 is recommended to 

restrict opening hours of the units from 07:30 to 23:00 hours Monday to Saturday and 
07:30 to 22:00 hours on Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays. Condition 10 would 
restrict deliveries to the units between 07:00 and 19:00 hours on Monday to 
Saturdays and between 09:00 and 17:00 on Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays. 
 

8.33 To protect the residential properties plant and equipment noise, condition  
11 is recommended to require submission of a noise assessment from plant 
equipment and proposed sound insulation. 
 

Page 27



  18 

 

8.34 Duct vent shafts to the roof level of the southern block are proposed through vertical 
shafts, which will be for ventiliation and cooling only of the building. The occupants of 
the commercial units are unknown and therefore to protect the residential properties 
from odour from any A3 uses (café/restaurant), condition 12 is recommended to 
require details of extraction, filtration and abatement.   

 
 Management and Maintenance  
 
8.35 The residential parking area for the north block, public realm areas comprising the 

square and surrounding areas will be managed and maintained by a private 
management company. Residential parking for the southern block will be managed 
by the Registered Provider.    

 
6. Drainage 

 

8.36 The drainage from the proposal will discharge to the existing constructed ditch on the 
west side of the development. The downstream ditch and sewers are routed through 
the proposed country park to catchment area pods. The drainage strategy proposes 
the use of bio retention areas within the private square which will be adopted by the 
private management company. There will be no use of soak a-ways or other 
infiltration systems. The drainage system has been designed with sufficient storage 
capacity enabling flows off the site to be controlled to the recommended discharge 
rates. Strategic drainage issues were raised by the County Lead Flood Authority and 
have been resolved following receipt of an amended drainage report received 
29/11/16, and the proposal is in line with the site wide drainage plan. Adequate 
provision is made for sustainable drainage in accordance with Policy NE/10 of the 
South Cambridgeshire LDF 2007, Policy 8/18 Cambridge Local Plan 2006 and 
Policies CSF/2 and CSF/24 of the Cambridge Southern Fringe AAP 2008. 

 

7. Public Art 

 

8.37 The overall public art strategy for the Trumpington Meadows site has been approved 
through the Section 106 Agreement (Schedule 2, Part A (11) of the outline consent.  
The strategy has different themes that will be implemented throughout the 
development. The proposed public art for this area will respond to the wider ‘Play 
Patterns’ theme which aims to enhance routes and connect the network of residential 
streets and the country park through informal play.  Final details of this public art are 
unknown and will be recommended to be secured by condition (16). Subject to this 
condition, the proposal will comply with Policy SF/6 of the South Cambridgeshire LDF 
2007, Policies CSF/2 and CSF/9 of the Cambridge Southern Fringe AAP 2008 and 
the approved Public Art Strategy for the Trumpington Meadows site (September 
2010). 

 
8. Renewable energy and sustainability 

 

8.38 Condition 21 of the outline permission requires the submission of details to ensure 
that a minimum of 10% of each phase's energy is generated from renewable sources. 
The ‘Sustainable Design and Construction statement’ submitted with the application 
sets out the approach to reduction in energy demand and emissions. Photovoltaics 

Page 28



  19 

 

are proposed to be installed to meet the minimum of 10% energy produced from 
renewable sources. All units will be built to Code for Sustainable Homes level 4 in line 
with the requirements of Condition 14 of the outline permission.   

 
8.39 The applicants have suitably addressed the issue of sustainability and renewable 

energy and the proposal is in accordance with Policies NE/1 and NE/3 of the adopted 
South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework 2007 and Policy CSF/21 of the 
Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan 2008. 

 

9. Disabled access 

 

8.40 The scheme accords with condition 15 of the outline approval, which requires 15% of 
all market dwellings and 15% of all affordable dwellings to meet the lifetime homes 
accreditation. All properties will be fully accessible by reason of Part M of the Building 
Regulations. All units will be accessible through an easy going stair which is 

complaint with the Lifetimes Homes requirement. The proposed retail units will 
demonstrate that BREEAM ‘Very Good’ will be achievable. The proposal is therefore 
compliant with policy CSF/2 of the Cambridge Southern Fringe AAP 2008. 

 

10. Residential Amenity 

 

Impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers 
 

8.41 To the north of the proposed northern block lies the existing neighbouring terraced 
properties along Osprey Drive (Phase 8), with a parallel row of housing to the north 
west of the site along Carmine Road. The northern block would lie at its closest 1.3 
metres from the common boundary with the immediate neighbour at No.24 Osprey 
Drive, and 4 metres from its side elevation. Within the proposed north side elevation 
of the northern block lies side windows at first and second floor which serve 
bathrooms, and as a result there would not be any overlooking to this neighbouring 
property. The proposed northern block to the west would have an attached cycle 
store building projecting along the boundary. The northern block would result in 
minimal loss of light and overbearing impact to this neighbour.  

 
8.42 The proposed southern block would lie adjacent to the neighbouring properties which 

are currently being built under Phase 9. The proposal would not result in any 
significant harm to the amenity of the adjacent properties.  

 

Amenity for future occupiers of the site 
 
8.43 Each apartment has access to a private balcony or private terrace at ground floor 

level.   
 

8.44 The apartments within the southern block would be above the commercial units 
which form a continuous parade. The proposed uses for the units are currently 
unknown and the proposals put forward are for A1, A2, A3 or D1 use. Recommended 
conditions (9, 10,11 & 12)  in regard to hours of use for the units, delivery times for 
the units, assessment of noise for the plant serving the units and sound insulation 
and details of equipment for extraction, filtration and abatement of fumes and odours 
will ensure that the amenity of the neighbouring units are protected.  

 

Page 29



  20 

 

8.45 The outlook of the apartments within the northern block would be towards the car 
park which would be partly screened by a pergola over the northern part, and soft 
planting to soften the outlook.  

 
8.46 The proposal is considered to provide a high-quality living environment and an 

appropriate standard of residential amenity for future occupiers in accordance with 
Policy DP/3 of the South Cambridgeshire LDF 2007 and Policy CSF/2 of the 
Cambridge Southern Fringe AAP 2008. 

 

11. Refuse Arrangements 
 

8.47 Three bin stores are to be provided for each of the two blocks within an integral 
storage area to comply with the design code. The refuse stores will be located within 
10 metres of the collection points on Osprey Drive and Spine Road West. There will 
be a separate bin storage area for the commercial use within the southern block. 
Within the south block, the bin store will be located 14 metres from the collection 
point on the Community Street. Within the north block, the bin store would be located 
18 metres from the collection point on the side street. These marginally exceed the 
recommended 10 metre drag distance set out in the RECAP guidance; however no 
suitable alternatives exist in this instance and the bin drag route is direct and level.  

 

8.48 An underground waste recycling facility will be provided within the Local Centre 
adjacent to the adoptable highway. This will be adopted by a private management 
company, with maintenance and emptying being through a private contractor. 
Condition (13) will be recommended to require details of the appearance and 
material finish of the above ground waste hoppers.  

 
8.49 Consequently, the proposal is generally compliant with the Local Centre strategy 

under condition 48 of the outline consent, the RECAP guide and Policy CSF/2 of the 
Cambridge Southern Fringe AAP 2008. 

 

12. Highways Issues  
 

8.50 The Spine Road runs through the site and has already been granted permission 
under Reserved Matters approval. The Local Highway Authority (LHA) has raised no 
concerns. The spine road and footpath proposed along the eastern edge of the site 
will be adopted by Cambridgeshire County Council; with all other areas including the 
square to be managed and maintained by the private management company. The 
car park for the northern block will be accessed by a side street to the north west and 
the car park for the southern block will be accessed by the community street to the 
south east. The Spine Road would be defined by a flush channel kerb each side, with 
a flush linear drainage channel adjacent to the road. This will allow a sufficient 
change in surface level to provide the required demarcation for pedestrians. The 
proposal is compliant with Policy DP/3 of the South Cambridgeshire LDF 2007 and 
CSF/10 of the Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan (2008). 

 

13. Car and Cycle Parking 
 

 Car Parking 
 

8.51 The proposal would provide 24 private car parking spaces for the north block and 16 

Page 30



  21 

 

private car parking spaces for the south block. Eight car parking spaces would be 
provided to serve the retail units, comprising 6 spaces to the southern block court 
yard and 2 within the public square. Ten visitor spaces would be provided in the 
central square. Visitor parking will form part of a restricted parking zone from 8am to 
6pm, 1 hour no return within 3 hours in a marked bay. This will be managed by a 
private management company.  The outline permissions 08/0048/OUT and 
S/0054/08/O restricted the number of car parking spaces within the site to not exceed 
1,800 spaces. When looking at the site wide parking breakdown including Phases at 
10 & 11 which has recently been submitted but have yet to be determined, the total 
number of parking spaces would be 1,647 which would comply with the outline 
permissions. The proposed car parking provision for the residential and retail units 
would comply with the parking requirements set out in Policy TR/2 of the South 
Cambridgeshire LDF 2007 and Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan (AAP) 
(Table 2).  

 
8.52 Table 2 –Parking requirements 
 
 Design Code Parking Requirement 
  

Urban Quarter 1 space per dwelling with 1/3 on plot, 1/3 on street and 1/3 in 
courtyard/mews 

 
 Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan (AAP) Parking Requirement  
 

1 space per 50m² of retail  

 
8.53 Residential parking is proposed to the back of the north and south blocks.  This will 

be visually screened and softened by shrub ground planting, large to medium size 
crown trees and, within the northern block a pergola structure, large scale climbing 
species. Sufficient space and landscape separation has been provided to allow for 
tree growth. Parking within the public square will be broken up by trees, hedges and 
planting.  

  
8.54 There are two disabled car parking spaces provided, one for the north block and 

south block. This meets the requirement under condition 36 of the outline consent to 
provide at least 5% of all total spaces for disabled users. 

 
Cycle Parking 

 

8.55 Cycle parking would be provided within gated, secure bike stores for residents 
and within the square for visitors in the form of Sheffield stands. The proposed 
amount of cycle parking would accord with the requirements in the design code, 
which requires 1 space per bedroom up to 3 bedrooms and then 4 spaces for 4 
or 5 bedroom dwellings. 

8.56 A total of 67 cycle parking spaces are proposed with 1 cycle space per bedroom 
and 24 additional cycle spaces comprising 6 cycle spaces for staff and 18 
separate cycle space for visitors located within the local square. Condition 19 is 
recommended to ensure that 3 off gauge cycle spaces are provided within the 
local square to allow sufficient space for trailer bikes and cargo bikes.  

Page 31



  22 

 

8.57 Consequently, the proposal is compliant with Policy TR/2 of the South 
Cambridgeshire LDF 2007 and Policy CSF/11 of the Cambridge Southern Fringe 
Area Action Plan (2008).  

13. Construction Management Plan (CMP) 
 
8.58 The applicant has submitted a CMP as required under condition 30 of the outline 

planning consent. The Environmental Health Officer has confirmed that the submitted 
CMP is considered acceptable. The primary construction vehicular access to the site 
is located at the Addenbrookes Road on the southern boundary. 

 
14. External Lighting 

 
8.59 Condition (20) is recommended to agree the location of the street lights to avoid any 

conflict with tree planting and to mitigate light glare to neighbouring bedroom 
windows. 

 
15. Ecology 

 
8.60 The site is subject to an Ecological Management Plan previously agreed under 

condition 27 of the outline planning consent. There are no specific ecological 
enhancements required for the Local Centre Phase, which is considered acceptable 
by the Ecology Officer. 

 
16. Archaeology 
 

8.61 Archaeological mitigation has been undertaken for the Local Centre under condition 
42 of the outline planning application.  The Archaeology Officer has commented that 
subject to the letter dated 18th October 2012 from Alison Dickens at University of 
Cambridge, a programme of post excavation analysis leading to publication of 
excavation is required. A strategy for this has been approved and analysis will be 
followed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

 
17. Planning Obligation Strategy 

 
8.62 This reserved matters application does not trigger contributions under the Council’s 

Planning Obligation Strategy. Contributions have been secured towards on site and 
off site infrastructure and community development resources and other revenue 
related requirements under the S106 agreement for outline permissions 
08/0048/OUT and S/0054/08/O. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
 
9.1  This reserved matters application complies with the principles of the outline 

permission parameter plans and design code and will make a positive contribution to 
the character and appearance of the urban, riverside and gateway quarters within the 
Trumpington Meadows development.  APPROVAL is recommended. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

APPROVE subject to the following conditions: 

Page 32



  23 

 

1. No works or development above finished ground level shall take place until 
samples and details of the colour of the materials to be used in the construction 
of the external surfaces of the buildings, (which includes external features such 
as windows, doors, porch details, brick specification, projecting bay and dormer 
windows, garage doors, external metal work, rain water goods, and coping) have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Brick 
sample panels of the facing materials to be used shall be erected on site and 
shall be at least 1m x 1m to establish the detailing of bonding, coursing and 
colour and type of jointing and shall be agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. (Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory in 
accordance with Policy DP/2 of the adopted Local Development Framework 
2007.) 
 

2. No works or development above finished ground level shall take place until 
details of all non-masonry walling systems, cladding panels or other external 
screens including structural members, infill panels, edge, pergolas, junction and 
coping details, colours, surface finishes/textures and relationships to glazing and 
roofing have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This may consist of large-scale drawings and/or samples. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
(Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy DP/2 of the 
adopted Local Development Framework 2007.) 

 
3. No works or development above finished ground level shall take place until  

details of all windows and doors (to a scale of 1:20) (including the entrance porch 
features), as identified on the approved drawings, including materials, colours, 
surface finishes/textures have submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. (Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with 
Policy DP/2 of the adopted Local Development Framework 2007.) 

 
4. No works or development above finished ground level shall take place until 

details of the appearance and materials of the proposed balconies (including 
balustrade and Juliet) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. (Reason: To accord with Policy DP/2 of the adopted Local 
Development Framework 2007.) 

 
5. No works or development above finished ground level shall take place until full 

details of both hard and soft landscape works have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be 
carried out as approved.  These details shall include proposed finished levels or 
contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian 
access and circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and 
structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, 
lighting); proposed and existing functional services above and below ground ( 
drainage, power, communications cables, pipelines indicating lines, manholes, 
supports); retained historic landscape features and proposals for restoration, 
where relevant. Soft Landscape works shall include planting plans; written 

Page 33



  24 

 

specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with plant 
and grass establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and 
proposed numbers/densities where appropriate and an implementation 
programme. (Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that 
suitable hard and soft landscape is provided as part of the development in 
accordance with Policy DP/2 of the adopted Local Development Framework 
2007.) 
 

6. No works or development above finished ground level shall take place until a 
landscape maintenance and management plan, including long term design 
objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all 
landscape areas have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The landscape plan shall be carried out as approved.  Any 
trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, die 
or become in the opinion of the local planning authority, seriously damaged or 
defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of 
species, size and number as originally approved, unless the local planning 
authority gives its written consent to any variation. (Reason: To ensure the 
provision of amenity afforded by the proper maintenance of existing and/or new 
landscape features in accordance with Policy DP/2 of the adopted Local 
Development Framework 2007.) 
 

7. No works or development above finished ground level shall take place until there 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a 
plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to 
be erected. The boundary treatment shall be completed before the use is 
commenced in accordance with the approved details and shall thereafter be 
retained. (Reason - To ensure that the appearance of the site does not detract 
from the character of the area in accordance with Policy DP/2 of the adopted 
Local Development Framework 2007.) 
 

8. No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until the surface water drainage 
scheme serving the building and its car parking has been completed in 
accordance with the submitted details. The surface water drainage scheme shall 
be managed and maintained thereafter in accordance with the agreed details and 
management and maintenance for the lifetime of the development. (Reason: To 
prevent the increased risk of flooding in accordance with Policy NE/11 of the 
adopted Local Development Framework 2007.) 
 

9. Public opening hours for the retail/commercial units identified as Retail 1, 2 & 3 
on drawing 068-A-120 Rev P1 Ground Floor Plan South Block, hereby approved, 
shall not be outside the hours of 07:30 to 23:00 hours (Monday to Saturday) and 
07:30 to 22:00 hours (Sunday, Bank and Public Holidays) (Reason: To protect 
the amenity of the adjoining and nearby properties in accordance with Policy 
DP/3 of the adopted Local Development Framework 2007.) 
 

10. There shall be no retail or commercial related deliveries to the approved 
development outside the hours of 07:00 and 19:00 hours (Monday to Saturday) 
and 09:00 to 17:00 hours (Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays) unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. (Reason: To protect the 

Page 34



  25 

 

amenity of the adjoining and nearby properties in accordance with Policy DP/3 of 
the adopted Local Development Framework 2007.) 
 

11. Prior to the occupation of the retail or commercial units, an assessment of the 
noise impact of any plant serving those units, and a scheme for sound insulation 
where required to minimise the level of noise emanating from said plant or 
equipment, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. Any noise insulation scheme as approved shall be fully implemented 
before the use, hereby permitted, is occupied and shall thereafter be maintained 
in strict accordance with the approved details and shall not be altered without 
prior written approval from the Local Planning Authority. (Reason: To protect the 
amenity of adjoining and nearby properties in accordance with Policy DP/3 of the 
adopted Local Development Framework 2007.) 
 

12. Prior to the occupation of any A3 units, details of equipment for the purposes of 
extraction, filtration and/or abatement of fumes and/or odours shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
extraction/filtration and/or abatement of fumes and/or odours shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
extraction/filtration/abatement scheme shall be installed before the use, hereby 
permitted, is commenced and shall be serviced and maintained in accordance 
with manufacturer specifications to ensure its continued satisfactory operation 
and shall be retained thereafter. (Reason: To protect the amenity of adjoining 
and nearby properties in accordance with Policy DP/3 of the adopted Local 
Development Framework 2007.) 
 

13. Prior to the installation of any above ground waste hoppers, details of the 
appearance and material finish of the hoppers shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved hoppers shall be 
installed and operational prior to the occupation of the units to which they serve. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
(Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the underground waste hoppers are 
appropriate in accordance with Policy DP/3 of the adopted Local Development 
Framework 2007).  
 

14. The number of proposed units contained within retail units 1,2 and 3 shall be 
in accordance with plan 068-A-100 Rev P2. Any amalgamation of units shall be 
accompanied by a statement containing the operational justification for the new 
configuration, the impact on the proposed local centre and any external design 
implications. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed 
details. (Reason: A new configuration of units within the local centre would have 
a different impact on servicing, design and amenity which would require 
assessment by the Local Planning Authority in accordance with Policy DP/3 of 
the adopted Local Development Framework 2007). 
 

15. Prior to occupation of each separate commercial unit hereby approved, a 
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The management plan shall include details of measures 
taken to minimise the impact on the amenities of nearby residential properties. In 
the case of A3 (Restaurant and Café) uses this will include details of outside 
seating hours of use and management, measures to ensure the impact of the 

Page 35



  26 

 

coming and goings of patrons is appropriately managed, details of deliveries and 
contact details for residents to report undue noise or disturbance. The 
development shall be occupied in accordance with the agreed management 
plan(s). (Reason: In the interests of the amenity of adjacent future residents in 
accordance with Policy DP/3 of the adopted Local Development Framework 
2007). 
 

16. Prior to occupation of the development, full details of the scheme for public art 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The submitted scheme shall be in accordance with the approved Trumpington 
Meadows Public Art Strategy (August 2010) and include details of the following: 
 

a) Descriptions, plans and images of the public art including its location 
b) Details of community engagement and consultation including measures to 

promote involvement in the evolution of the public art 
c) Project timescale 
d) Delivery mechanisms 
e) The total amount allocated for the proposed public art including 

maintenance and decommissioning costs (if applicable) 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
(Reason: To ensure that the details of the public art comes forward in 
accordance with the Public Art Strategy and that the public art positively 
contributes to its context within the public realm in the interests of creating 
successful, high quality, attractive environments in accordance with Policy SF/6 
of the adopted Local Development Framework 2007.) 

17. Prior to completion of the development the following implementation and 
maintenance details of the public art approved under condition 16 shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

a) Details for the installation of the public art 
b) Legal ownership and insurance details 
c) Responsibility for implementation 
d) Responsibility for maintenance and maintenance schedules 
e) Details of decommissioning including timescales and reparation (if applicable) 
   

 (Reason: To ensure that the details of maintenance and implementation of the 
public art are considered, in the interest of creating a successful, high quality, 
attractive environment in accordance with Policy SF/6 of adopted Local 
Development Framework 2007.) 

18. Prior to the installation of any artificial lighting an artificial lighting scheme, to 
include details of any external lighting of the site such as street lighting, 
floodlighting, security / residential lighting and an assessment of impact on any 
sensitive residential premises on and off site, shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include layout plans 
/ elevations with luminaire locations annotated, full isolux contour map / diagrams 
showing the predicted illuminance intensity in the horizontal and vertical plane (in 
lux) at critical locations within the site and on the boundary of the site and at 

Page 36



  27 

 

future adjacent properties, including consideration of Glare (direct source 
luminance / luminous  intensity in the direction and height of any sensitive 
residential receiver) as appropriate, hours and frequency of use, a schedule of 
equipment in the lighting design (luminaire type / profiles, mounting height, 
aiming angles / orientation, angle of glare, operational controls) and shall assess 
artificial light impact in accordance with the Institute of Lighting Professionals 
"Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01:2011" including 
resultant sky glow, light intrusion / trespass, source glare / luminaire intensity and 
building luminance. The approved lighting scheme shall be installed, maintained 
and operated in accordance with the approved details. (Reason: To protect local 
residents from light pollution / nuisance and protect / safeguard the amenities of 
nearby residential properties in accordance with Policy DP/3 and NE/11 of the 
adopted Local Development Framework 2007). 
 

19. Prior to occupation of the development, plans to show the location and 
specification of three off-gauge bicycle parking spaces to be provided within the 
local square shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
The agreed off-gauge cycle parking details shall be fully constructed and finished 
prior to the first occupation of southern block. (Reason: In the interests of 
sustainable travel in accordance with Policy DP/1, DP/2, DP/3, TR/1, TR/2 and 
TR/4 of the adopted Local Development Framework 2007). 

 
20. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 
 

Site Plans 
 
068-A-001 (Site Location Plan- SCDC Land Area) 

 
Diagrams 

 
 068-A-002 Rev P01 (Contour Levels) 

068-A-300 P1 (Context Sections) 
068-A-700 Rev P2 (Ground Floor Plan – Tenure Mix) 
068-A-701 Rev P2 (First Floor Plan – Tenure Mix) 

 068-A-702 Rev P2 (Second Floor Plan –Tenure Mix) 
068-A-703 Rev P2 (Accessible Dwellings) 
068-A-800 Rev P1 (Cycle Strategy)  
068-A-801 Rev P1 (North Block- Cycle Storage Detail) 
068-A-802 Rev P1 (South Block-Cycle Storage Detail) 
068-A-820 Rev P2 (Refuse Strategy) 
068-A-821 Rev P2 (North Block- Refuse Detail) 
068-A-822 Rev P1 (South Block-Refuse Detail) 
068-A-900 Rev P1 (Sunlight Study) 
068-A-901 Rev P1 (South Block- Retail) 
 
Architectural Drawings 
 
068-A-100 Rev P2 (Ground Floor Plan)  
068-A-101 Rev P1 (First Floor Plan) 
068-A-102 Rev P1 (Second Floor Plan) 

Page 37



  28 

 

068-A-103 Rev P1 (Roof Plan) 
068-A-110 Rev P2 (Ground Floor Plan North Block) 
068-A-111 Rev P1 (First Floor Plan North Block) 
068-A-112 Rev P1 (Second Floor North Block) 
068-A-113 Rev P1 (Roof Plan North Block)  
068-A-120 Rev P1 (Ground Floor Plan South Block) 
068-A-121 Rev P1 (First Floor Plan South Block) 
068-A-122 Rev P1 (Second Floor South Block) 
068-A-123 Rev P1 (Roof Plan South Block) 
068-A-200 Rev P1 (Square Elevations) 
068-A-201 Rev P1 (Street Elevations)  
068-A-210 Rev P1 (Elevations North Block) 
068-A-211 Rev P1 (Elevations North Block) 
068-A-220 Rev P1 (Elevations South Block) 
068-A-221 Rev P1 (Elevations South Block) 
068-A-300 Rev P1 (Context Sections) 
068-A-310 Rev P1 (Sections North Block) 
068-A-320 Rev P1 (Sections South Block) 
068-A-410 Rev P1 (Unit Types 01) 
068-A-411 Rev P1 (Unit Types 02) 
068-A-412 Rev P1 (Unit Types 03) 
068-A-420 Rev P1 (Units Types 01)  
068-A-421 Rev P1 (Units Types 02)  
068-A-510 Rev P1 (North Block – Staircase 01)  
053-A-511 Rev P1 (North Block – Staircase 02)  
068-A-520 Rev P1 (South Block – Staircase 01)  
053-A-521 Rev P1 (South Block – Staircase 02)  
068-A-610 Rev P1 (Bay Studies) 
068-A-620 Rev P1 (Bay Studies)  
 
Landscaping Street Scenes 
 
536.LC.D.00 Conceptual Landscape Masterplan 
536.LC.D.01 (Tree Planting Plan) 
536.LC.D.02 (Tree Position Analysis)  
536.LC.D.03 (Infrastructure Planting Plan) 
536.LC.D.05 (Typical Tree Pit Detail for Paved Areas) 
536.LC.D.06 (SUDS_Typical Tree Pit Detail) 
536.LC.D.07 (Typical Tree Pit detail in Soft Landscape) 
536.LC.D.09 (Planting Mixes-Typical Detail) 
Outline Specification For Soft Landscape Works Revision A Local Centre 
5 Year Management and Maintenance Schedule Revision A  
 
Other Documents 
 
Trumpington Meadows Riverside – Design and Access Statement including  
Compliance Statement dated 23rd November 2016 
SUDS Maintenance Plan SMP-RQ-01 
Drainage Strategy Statement dated 05/08/2016 
536.LC.D.04 (Pedestrian/Cycleways Diagram) 
536.LC.D.08 Rev C Indicative Adoption/Management Plan 

Page 38



  29 

 

 0658-RPZ-001 Rev B (Overall Proposed Restricted Parking Zones) 
0658-RPZ-003 Rev A (Proposed Restricted Parking Zones Sheet 3 of 3) 
0658-SK-139 Rev G (Tracking and Visibility)  
0658-SK-140 Rev G (Highway Adoption Plan) 
0658-SK-142 Rev D (Detailed Drainage Strategy) 
0658-SK-153 Rev D (Recycling Centre) 
6435-APP-01C (Access & Phase Plan) 
H6435/COMP/01 A (Compound Details) 
Sustainable Design & Construction Statement dated 21st September 2016 by 
Daedalus Environmental Limited 
 
(Reason – In the interests of good planning, for the avoidance of doubt and to 
facilitate any future application to the Local Planning Authority under Section 73 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.) 
 
Contact details 
To inspect the application or if you have any queries on the report please contact: 

Author’s Name: Katie Christodoulides 

  Phone Number: 01954 713314 
Email:   Katie.christodoulides@scambs.gov.uk 

  Appendix 

  APPENDIX 1 – Plan of Trumpington Meadows Phases 

  APPENDIX 2 - Quality Panel minutes dated 11th April 2016 

  APPENDIX 3- Visuals of the proposed scheme  

APPENDIX 4- Design code compliance statement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

mailto:Katie.christodoulides@scambs.gov.uk


  30 

 

APPENDIX 1 – Plan of Trumpington Meadows Phases 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



  31 

 

APPENDIX 2 - Quality Panel minutes dated 11th April 2016 
 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE QUALITY PANEL REPORT OF PANEL MEETING 
 
Scheme: Trumpington Meadows Local Centre 
 
Date: 24th August 2016 
 
Venue: Shire Hall Room 128, Cambridgeshire County Council, CB3 0AP 
 
Time: 13:30 -16:30 
 
Quality Panel Members Robin Nicholson (Chair) Oliver Smith Luke Engleback Nick 
James Steve Platt Phil Jones 
 
Panel secretariat and support Alokiir Ajang – Cambridgeshire County Council Judit 
Carballo – Cambridgeshire County Council 
 
Local Authority Attendees Andrew Winter, Senior Planning Officer – South 
Cambridgeshire District Council 
 
Applicant and Representatives Andrew Taylor– Barratts Eastern Counties Tim Eyton-
Jones – Barratts Eastern Counties Burinder Lekh –Barratts Eastern Counties Adam 
Tillion – Barratts Eastern Counties Alison Wright– Bidwells Sarah Cullen – Bidwells 
Joseph Faycal – Makower Architects Timothy Makower – Makower Architects Adrian 
Geary– WSP Hussein Panjwani – WSP Guillaume Baltz – BHSLA 
 

1. Scheme description and presentation Architect/Designer Makeover Architects 
Applicant Barratts Eastern Counties Planning status Pre – determination stage 
 

2. Overview The Local Centre forms part of the wider Trumpington Meadows Site which 
lies on the south western edge of Cambridge to the west of Hauxton Road, immediately 
west and north of the Trumpington Park & ride on the former Monsanto Site. The site sits 
within the administrative areas of both Cambridge City Council and South 
Cambridgeshire District Council. It forms part of the area primarily allocated for 
residential development within the Cambridge Local Plan 2006. Trumpington Meadows 
Local Centre is situated within close proximity of the Village and Urban Quarter and it 
lies at the centre of the wider masterplan. The site lies in between Phase 8, Phase 9 and 
Trumpington Meadows Primary School and defines the square at the Local Centre. The 

proposal comprises the following:  40 Apartments (density 61 dph), with a mix of 1-bed 

(50m2) and 2 bed (70m2) (40/60 Affordable/Market tenure)  Car parking at the back 

courtyards.  Refuse and cycle stores. The Local Centre is a key character area within 
the Design Code. In April 2016 the Quality Panel reviewed a Pre-reserved matters 
application for Trumpington Meadows Riverside by the same Applicant. Phases 10 and 
11 are anticipated to be presented to the Panel in September 2016. 
 

3. Cambridgeshire Quality Panel views 
 

 Introduction  
The Panel commended the Applicant on their presentation and they were encouraged by 
the level of work presented at this stage. 

Page 41



  32 

 

 
The Panel’s advice reflects the issues associated with each of the four ‘C’s’ in the 
Cambridgeshire Quality Charter. The comments below include both those raised in the 
open session of the meeting and those from the closed session discussions.  
 
Community  
 
The consultation process with existing communities was discussed and the Panel 
highlighted the need to carefully consider who was addressed, who responded, who was 
missing and the types of groups included. This would be a rare opportunity to learn from 
the existing communities at Trumpington Meadows to help improve the design and 
future social interactions.  
 
There is a need to identify who is using which space and when, what activities will occur, 
for example, will the seating be mainly used by teenagers for gathering? Thought must 
be given into treating the anxieties that certain groups and activities may create among 
existing residents. Activities like markets need to be managed.  
 
The Panel accepted the less than ideal location of the shops on the south side but 
encouraged the selection of useful local shops with the flexibility to re-purpose the space 
and felt that the scheme would benefit from a strategy about the retail units. There was 
some concern about traffic being generated by shops becoming the ‘go-to’ local 
specialist as in some local villages.  
 
Connectivity  
 
The Spine Road traffic flow and volume through the site was discussed and the Panel 
advised considering the behaviours of pedestrians and drivers. The Panel felt that the 
linear paving pattern and strong lighting column alignment may instil a sense of it being 
a road rather than a pedestrian square. Instead the square should give priority to 
pedestrians over vehicles and ensure safe, legible crossing points are laid out in the 
design.  
 
Thought should be given to the treatment of the pavement and rotating the geometrical 
pattern to relate to the school entrance and route to the park. This could subtly create 
and encourage desired road behaviours, precedents such as O’Donnell Street in Dublin 
or Skvallertorget Square (Noorkoping, Sweeden)were suggested as useful comparators.  
 
The Panel suggested reducing the amount of trees in the centre as they appear to 
reinforce the feeling of a road passing through the pedestrian area. The Panel 
encouraged the Applicant to aim to create a space where pedestrians feel free and 
comfortable.  
 
The Panel were concerned about parking provisions in the centre and queried whether 
this was positioned in the right place. 
 
Character  
Three main spaces were identified within the square; the north, the school forecourt and 
the east. The Panel appreciated the highway constraints on the north side; however, it 
was felt the school side appeared to be less developed than the other spaces.  
 

Page 42



  33 

 

The Panel were satisfied with the overall building heights, although they could imagine 
four floors; comparative studies of the size and containment of other such spaces would 
be helpful. They enjoyed the raised parapet features marking the view towards 
Trumpington Church.  
 
The Panel supported the proposed number of openings and variations of width within the 
facades and the overall calmness of the design; the Panel felt that the blue brickwork 
base could be taken higher. It was noted that there are lots of shops with blanked out 
windows and the Panel felt that measures should be taken to prevent this happening.  
 
High quality lighting was needed to create a sense of place and take away the emphasis 
of the road.  
 
The Panel supported the idea of the big tree and bench in front of the school but 
questioned whether it was positioned in the right place and whether evergreen oak might 
become invasive.  
 
The Panel supported the idea of planted pergolas in the rear parking courts and liked the 
passages through to the courts. 
 
 Climate The Panel supported the simple approach to climate however it was felt that 
further thought must be given to the internal corridors and it was noted that the scheme 
would benefit from sunlight and ventilation study. The Panel were happy with the dual 
aspect plans however, it was highlighted that there may be an acoustic issue when 
facing the public square. The Panel wanted to see how the flat roofs would be used with 
PVs, planting, etc. Concerns were raised in relation to the positioning of the recycling 
centre using the 22m rule. The Panel noted that this was based on above ground 
facilities and this rule should be interrogated and adapted to ensure it works for 
underground.  
 
In regards to Code Level 4 homes, the Panel were concerned that the implications had 
not yet been considered and noted that it could lead to issues with ventilation and 
overheating. It is fundamental for the execution of the energy response to consider 
future climate resilience as soon as possible. 
 
4. Conclusion  
 
The Panel welcomed seeing the scheme at such an early stage and thanked the 
Applicant for their thorough presentation. The Panel was generally pleased with the level 
of thought however they urged the Applicant to be mindful that the consultation is not 
just a process to present a design but to seek an opinion. The Panel made the following 

recommendations, further details can be found above:  Explore the potential uses of the 
space by different groups, for example consider the provision of an urban gym, to the 

east of the square next to the school.  Explore alternatives for the parking and recycling 

centre.  Consider the use of feature lighting to create a sense of place 
 

 Overheating is a concern, as many new homes overheat and it is expensive to correct.  

 There is an opportunity to raise some of the buildings to 4 floors. 

  The architecture should remain calm and simple. 

Page 43



  34 

 

  Consider paving and shared surface patterns and how this will affect pedestrian and 
driver’s behaviour. Is the grid the right size and scale? The Panel encourage further 
dialogue with the County Highways to allow for the change in surfaces. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



  35 

 

APPENDIX 3- Visuals of the proposed scheme 
 
North Block- South Elevation facing the square  
 

 
 
 
South Block- North Elevation facing the square  
 

 
 
 
Street Scene –West Elevation 
 

 
 
Street Scene- East Elevation  
 

 
 

Page 45



  36 

 

Illustrative north elevation of square showing local centre within its context  
 
 

 
 
 
Illustrative south elevation of square showing local centre within its context  
 

 
 
 
Illustrative aerial view looking West towards the country park showing the local centre 
 
 

 
 
 
South block- Illustrative view showing the retail units 
 

Page 46



  37 

 

 

 
 
Scheme Layout – ground floor plan retail and residential  
 

 
Landscape Masterplan  
 

Page 47



  38 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



  39 

 

APPENDIX 4- Design code compliance statement 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



145

P
age 51



P
age 52



Compliance Schedule9
Design Code Compliance� 147

P
age 53



148

Page Subject Action
01 Introduction
pp 4 The vision ✓ The overall vision of the design code is to ensure that a cohesive, locally distinctive and high quality development is delivered at Trumpington Meadows. It is to create a vibrant 

and fully integrated new community with a strong sense of local identity. This can be achieved by creating pocket parks encouraging natural play and providing wildlife interest, 
prioritising pedestrian and cycle movements as well as green corridors through the development.
This vision has been taken into account and the proposal has been designed in accordance with the Cambridge Council approved Parameter Plans and Design Code, November 
2010, and how it satisfies the planning conditions.

pp 5 Key objectives ✓ The Design Code establishes 12 development objectives central to the vision. The aim of the project is to create a vibrant and well-defined public space with active edges 
and a strongly defined civic identity, on account firstly of its built edges and secondly its landscape. The primary concept objectives of the proposal are To achieve a timeless 
architecture, to use rhythm and grain to create strong relationships with surrounding streets and to achieve a sense of density.

pp 6 What is unique about Trumpington 
Meadows

✓ The Design Code establishes the design principles that are mandatory but states that the master plan is illustrative.  There are 13 design principles set as mandatory, one of which 
relates directly to the Local Centre: Local Centre and Primary School (5). The Local Centre will become the community heart with the primary school, community facilities, local 
shop all located at this central point within a 5-minute walk of all parts of the development. Refer to Chapter 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 of the Compliance Statement for more detailed 
information.

pp 8 The site and context ✓ The Local Centre application is part of different phases of Trumpington Meadows. As part of the wider development, it is ideally located to promote sustainable modes of travel 
as required by the Design Code.

pp 10 The scheme and outline consent ✓ The site sits within the approved outline planning application for Urban quarter character area. Trumpington Meadows Local Centre forms part of the wider Trumpington 
Meadows Site which lies on the south western edge of Cambridge to the west of Hauxton Road, immediately west and north of the Trumpington Park & Ride on the former 
Monsanto Site.

02 The Code and how to use it
pp 17 Character areas ✓ The Local Centre application sits within Urban Quarter. It is close to the Village Quarter and Riverside Quarter.The proposal respects the transition between the other quarters.

03 Local character appraisal
pp 22 Overview of local character ✓ Trumpington being part of three distinct settlements, Cambridge city and Grantchester, which provide a rich and diverse range of characteristics. Trumpington today comprises 

two distinct areas; the historic core to the west that is designated as a conservation area, and more recent development in the eastern half of the village.  A close examination of 
Trumpington vernacular – both traditional and contemporary – has underpinned the design. Refer to Chapter 4 in the Compliance Statement for more detailed information.

pp 40 Analysis that has informed the urban, 
riverside and gateway quarters

✓ A close examination of the analysis of key features has underpinned the design. As acknowledged by the Design Code for these character areas, the essential characteristics can 
be summarised by a grid layout, strong building lines and continuous frontage, strong avenues with formal tree planting, higher density and building height, colours and materials 
are often muted, strong townscape along main streets, contemporary / bespoke architecture that sits within traditional urban form /context and strong building line defines public 
spaces / squares.  Our Design and Access Statement has considered these finding to generate the proposal. Refer to the Compliance Statement for more detailed information.

04 Site wide coding

pp 54 Introduction and land uses ✓ The proposal follows all the related Conditions listed on page 54 of the Approved Design Code. 

Condition 4: Reserved matters ✓ The proposal seeks consent for the Reserved Matters of Outline permission S/0054/08/O, in accordance with condition 4, and specifically in relation to the Local Centre. The 
reserved matters will include access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale.

Condition 6: Car Parking ✓ The scheme provides surface parking at the back of the North and South Block. All as described and developed in Section 6.2 Car Parking and Chapter 8 Landscape of this Design 
and Access Statement including Compliance Statement.

Condition 10: Design Code ✓ The Compliance Schedule is provided in this Chapter 9 of this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement.

Compliance Schedule

9 Compliance Schedule

P
age 54



149

Page Subject Action
04 Site wide coding

Condition 13 - Affordable Housing ✓ Plans showing distribution of market and affordable dwellings are included in this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement Chapter 5 Land-Use, Density, 
Mix and Tenure. The scheme complies with Condition 13 as it provides only 16 affordable apartments (less than 20) clustered together with only 10 accessed from a common 
stairwell (less than 12 as per Condition 13).

Condition 14: Code for Sustainable 
Homes

✓ Deadalus Sustainability Statement demonstrates how these matters have been addressed. In accordance with the Design Code all the affordable housing has been designed to 
Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4. The private housing has also been designed to Level 4.

Condition 15: Lifetime Homes ✓ Plans showing distribution of Lifetime Homes are included in this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement. We have allocated 4 LTH’s for Market Units and 
3 LTH’s for Affordable Units (57/43%) totalling 7 LTH. This amounts to 17.5% of the total number (40) of residential units. The LTH’s are located in conjunction with their parking 
so they do not exceed 50m in all cases.

Condition 17: Surface Water Strategy ✓ Drainage strategy statement includes a detailed surface water strategy. The detailed strategy demonstrates how the management of water accords with the approved strategic 
site wide strategy. Trees planted at the square are planted in trenches, which are themselves connected to the catchment of surface water run-off and provide valuable attenuation 
volume. Please refer to Landscape chapter 8.3.

Conditions 18:  Foul water drainage ✓ Drainage strategy statement includes surface water quality measures in the form of porous pavement and bio retention areas together with a detailed foul water drainage strategy. 

Conditions 19:  Foul water drainage ✓ Drainage strategy statement includes a foul water drainage strategy.

Condition 21: Renewable energy 
strategy

✓ Details of the use of renewable energy on the development is provided within the compliance statement covering sustainable design and construction. In line with previous phases 
of Trumpington Meadows, each block will have photovoltaic panels installed configured on a communal basis. The indicative sizes of the systems and the calculations that will be 
provided demonstrate that 10% of the Local Centre’s carbon emissions will be offset through the use of renewable energy systems.

Condition 24: Landscaping within the 
built up area

✓ Landscape proposal compliant with design principles. Please refer to landscape chapter, section 8.3 and 8.4.

Condition 27: Ecological management 
plan

✓ Condition 27 has already been discharged on 24th May 2010 ref: S/0054/08/O, 08/0048/OUT.

Condition 28: Contamination land 
assessment and remedial strategy

✓ A copy of a letter from Sharon Brown and John Pym dated 24 October 2011 is included referring to the discharge of parts a, b, c and d of Condition 28 across the Trumpington 
Meadows development. As such, these parts of the condition are satisfied for Local Centre. The letter states that each future Reserved Matters approval will be subject to an 
appropriate soil management plan condition, and parts E and F of the outline condition relate to post start on site stages.

Condition 30: Construction 
management plan

✓ Construction management plan (CMP) is submitted with the application.

Condition 32: Waste recycling facilities ✓ Further illustrations are provided within this application.

9 Compliance Schedule

Compliance Schedule

P
age 55



150

Page Subject Action
04 Site wide coding

Condition 35: Levels ✓ Proposed levels of buildings and building plot compared to existing levels of the site is provided within this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement chapter 
4.5.

Condition 36: Car parking ✓ Car parking is provided at a ratio of 1 space per unit totalling 40 car spaces for residents, 8 spaces for retail and 1 space for visitors for each 4 units totalling 10. In total, the 
scheme provided 58 car parking spaces.

Condition 37: Car parking total ✓ A schedule for the site wide car parking numbers is submited with this application. The findings show that to date a total of 1648 spaces have been provided which is within the 
Design Code permitted total of 1800 spaces. The achieved average space to dwelling is 1.40 which is within the Design Code average of 1.5 and satisfies at least one space per 
dwelling.

Condition 38: Cycle ways and 
footpaths

✓ Proposed cycle ways and footpaths compliant with Design Code. Please refer to landscape drawing 536.LC.D.04

Conditions: 42: Archaeology ✓ Not part of the Local Centre application.. 
Condition 45: Fire hydrants ✓ Fire hydrant location is indicated on drawing 0658-SK140 and the technical note.  The location and number of fire hydrants will be determined by Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue 

Service following a risk assessment once a water scheme has been received.
Condition 48: Local Centre Strategy ✓ A Local Centre Strategy was submitted to and approved by the Joint Development Control Committee ( JDCC) on 18 June 2014 and condition 24 of Outline permission 

S/0054/08/O was subsequently formally discharged on 23 July 2014 (under application reference S/2170/13/DC).
pp 55 Block structure ✓ The proposed block structure is within the dimension set by the Design Code 45 - 70m wide and long.  Refer to Chapter 4 in the Compliance Statement for more detailed 

information.
pp 57 Movement and streets ✓ The street hierarchy of the Master Plan is respected and reinforced by the massing, frontage and landscape design of the proposal. The Local Centre application is served by 

primary street, secondary street and community street. Refer to Chapter 6 in the Compliance Statement for more detailed information.
pp 64 Cycle parking ✓ The proposal complies with the numbers set in Table 4iv, page 64. Secure cycle storage is provided in accordance with www.camcycle.org.uk/resources/cycleparking/standards/

city2006.pdf.
The majority of storage takes the form of ‘Sheffield’ stands at 1000mm centres, within gated cycle stores, with access as described in Section 6.1. Cycle stores are within 20m max 
of entrances, unless stated otherwise. Visitor cycle spaces have been included at the Square and as indicated in plans. Refer to Chapter 6.1 and 8 in the Compliance Statement for 
more detailed information.

pp 67 Car parking ✓ The scheme provides surface parking at the back of the north and south blocks and providing generous greenery and passageway at the edge of the parking courtyard.
The proposal accommodates cars within the development, providing on-plot parking for apartments. Parking is accessed through Side Street for North Block and Community 
Street for South Block. Car parking is provided at a ratio of 1 space per unit for 1 bedroom units and 2 bedroom units totalling 40 car spaces for residents. Six car parking spaces 
have been allocated to the Retail at the South Block. Parking spaces are sized at 2.4 x 4.8m, to maximise the use of space for green landscape. Two parking bays suitable for people 
with disabilities are provided, measuring 3.6m x 6.0m including a 1.2m overhang.

Compliance Schedule

9 Compliance Schedule

P
age 56



151

Page Subject Action

pp 72 Urban form – parameter master plan ✓ The site is located within Urban quarter. The parameter master plan indicates that built form at Local Centre are Primary Frontage. The proposal was developped taking into 
consideration this requirement. Refer to the Compliance Statement for more detailed information.

pp 74 Key spaces and frontages ✓ The design Code defines series of key public spaces that are important in providing a strong sense of place and legible layout. The design of these spaces should promote 
distinctiveness in character and should include input from an artist. The Local Centre proposal considered the importanc eof its location as Civic Centre to the neighbourhood.
Refer to he Compliance Statement for more detailed information.

pp 80 Landscape, public realm, open space 
and biodiversity

✓ The design of the public realm and residents communal areas is compliant with the details expressed by the design code; through choice of adequate plant species, hard landscape 
materials and design in principle. For further details refer to landscape chapter 8.

pp 86 Youth and children’s play strategy ✓ There is no indication for LPA in the Design Code at the Local Centre.

pp 91 Public art strategy ✓ The artwork will be integrated sensitively to the design of the local centre, making sure that it is actually an artwork and during concept development we may find that the work 
does play a role in the wider functionality of the local centre.

pp 92 Drainage ✓  Please see above responses to conditions 17, 18 and 19.

pp 94 Waste and recycling ✓ The proposed bins location and sizes comply with the RECAP.; all as illustrated within this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement.

pp 100 Sustainable development ✓ Please see above responses to conditions 14.

05 Character areas

5.2: Essential characteristics: Urban, Riverside and Gateway quarters

pp 104 Character areas ✓ The Design Code establishes the need for each quarter to have a change in ambience, appearance, house typology and urban form. At the same time the quarters must combine 
to create a unified whole; this juxtaposition is fundamental to the overall unity of the development. Getting this balance right is crucial to place making. The proposal for Local 
Centre considers this requirement and provide civic aspect to the square. Refer to the Compliance Statement for more detailed information.

pp 109 Essential characteristics: Urban, 
Riverside and Gateway quarters

✓ The Design Code establishes the essential characteristics for Urban quarter tp be the urban core and community heart of the development.  A gridded urban form provides a high 
degree permeability and legibility. Strong vistas and landmark buildings are a feature. Busy, dense urban form is centred around the primary school, local centre and community 
park. Refer to the Compliance Statement for more detailed information.

Compliance Schedule

9 Compliance Schedule

P
age 57



152

Page Subject Action
5.4: Urbane, Riverside and Gateway quarters

pp 152 Densities ✓ The proposed density of 61 dph is in accordance with the Design Code which allows for densities of 60-65 dph at the local centre. 

pp 153 Building heights ✓ The proposed storey heights appear to be in accordance with the Design Code and parameter plans.

pp 154 Building plots and typologies ✓ The general layout and form complies with parametr of the Design Code.

pp 156 Architectural design ✓ A good level of dialogue with the Local Authority and Quality Panel has fed into the design to date. The output is illustrated into this Design and Access Statement including 
Compliance Statement.

pp 158 Design principles and detailing to 
reflect local context

✓ Careful detailing of architecture is considered in the proposal by using 2 colour of bricks at the square as illustrated in chapter 4.9 of this Design and Access Statement including 
Compliance Statement.

pp 160 Detailing, materials and colours ✓ The buildings are of brick and as detailed in chapter 7.6 Bay Studies of this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement.

pp 162 Parking ✓ The scheme provides surface parking at the back of the north and south blocks and providing generous greenery and passageway at the edge of the parking courtyard.
The proposal accommodates cars within the development, providing on-plot parking for apartments. Parking is accessed through Side Street for North Block and Community 
Street for South Block. Car parking is provided at a ratio of 1 space per unit for 1 bedroom units and 2 bedroom units totalling 40 car spaces for residents. Six car parking spaces 
have been allocated to the Retail at the South Block. Parking spaces are sized at 2.4 x 4.8m, to maximise the use of space for green landscape. Two parking bays suitable for 
people with disabilities are provided, measuring 3.6m x 6.0m including a 1.2m overhang.

pp 164 Streets ✓ The Local Centre development is accessed by Main Street - Spine Road, Side Street and Community Street. It is connected directly to these streets to serve the resident parking 
and waste collection.

pp 172 Public realm and landscape ✓ Landscape proposals are compliant with principles establish by the Design Code as detailed in chapter 8 of this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement.

pp 176 Street materials and furniture ✓ The range of materials and street furniture permitted is taken into account within the design as detailed in chapter 8 of this Design and Access Statement including Compliance 
Statement.

pp 178 Boundary treatment ✓ The importance of high quality boundary treatments is recognized within the scheme , all as detailed in chapter 8 of this Design and Access Statement including Compliance 
Statement.

pp 180 Planting ✓ Planting design is compliant with design code, all as detailed in chapter 8 of this Design and Access Statement including Compliance Statement.

Compliance Schedule

9 Compliance Schedule

P
age 58



Conclusion

The primary concept objective of the proposal is to achieve 
a timeless architecture, rooted in tradition but striking and 
contemporary; creating a strong sense of identity for the heart 
of the development. This can be achieved by using rhythm and 
grain to create strong relationships with surrounding streets, 
whilst using architectural accent to create delight and surprise 
and to form particular dialogue with context reflecting 
the significance of this space as the heart of Trumpington 
Meadows.

P
age 59



P
age 60


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 S/2647/16/RM - Local Centre phase, Trumpington Meadows development, Hauxton Road
	Compliance Table for Local Centre


